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l\ — A  NEW ENGLAND ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES
~7=\ COMMISSION ON INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION
- C 209 Burlington Road, Bedford, MA 01730

Voice: (781)271-0022 Fax: (781)271-0950 Web: http://cihe.neasc.org

AFFIRMATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL REGULATIONS RELATING TO TITLE IV

Periodically, member institutions are asked to affirm their compliance with federal requirements relating to  Title
IV program participation, including relevant requirements of the Higher Education Opportunity Act.

1. Credit Hour: Federal regulation defines a credit hour as an amount of work represented in intended learning outcomes and
verified by evidence of student achievement that is an institutional established equivalence that reasonably approximates not less
than: (1) One hour of classroom or direct faculty instruction and a minimum of two hours of out of class student work each week for
approximately fifteen weeks for one semester or trimester hour of credit, or ten to twelve weeks for one quarter hour of credit, or the
equivalent amount of work over a different amount of time; or (2) At least an equivalent amount of work as required in paragraph (1)
of this definition for other academic activities as established by the institution including laboratory work, internships, practica, studio
work, and other academic work leading to the award of credit hours. (CIHE Policy 111. See also Standards for Accreditation 4.34.)

URL https://www.amherst.edu/media/view/429331/original/Catalog%20Section%20IV.pdf
Print Publications Amherst College Catalog, IV B

Self-study/Fifth-year

report Page Reference

2. Credit Transfer Policies. The institution’s policy on transfer of credit is publicly disclosed through its website and other
relevant publications. The institution includes a statement of its criteria for transfer of credit earned at another institution of higher
education along with a list of institutions with which it has articulation agreements. (CIHE Policy 95. See also Standards for
Accreditation 4.44 and 10.5.)

URL

Print Publications Amherst Collegc Catalog
Self-study/Fifth-year
Report Page Reference

h Sa"a"WW amherst.edu/admission/apply/tran
edu/media/view/429331/ori 1na]J’Cata.lo %20Section%201V.p

3. Student Complaints. “Policies on student rights and responsibilities, including grievance procedures, are clearly stated, well
publicized and readily available, and fairly and consistently administered.” (Standards for Accreditation 6.18, 10.5, and 11.8.)

URL https://www.amherst. edu/campuslife/deanstudents/handbook/studentrights
Print Publications Student Handbook

Self-study/Fifth-year Report

Page Reference

4. Distance and Correspondence Education: Verification of Student Identity: If the institution offers distance
education or correspondence education, it has processes in place to establish that the student who registers in a distance education or
correspondence education course or program is the same student who participates in and completes the program and receives the
academic credit. . . .The institution protects student privacy and notifies students at the time of registration or enrollment of any
projected additional student charges associated with the verification of student identity. (CIHE Policy 95. See also Standards for
Accreditation 4.42.)

Method(s) used for verification N/A
Self-study/Fifth-year Report Page Reference N/A

5. FOR COMPREHENSIVE EVALUATIONS ONLY: Public Notification of an Evaluation Visit and

Opportunity for Public Comment: The institution has made an appropriate and timely effort to notify the public of an
upcoming comprehensive evaluation and to solicit comments. (CIHE Policy 77.)

URL N/A
Print Publications N;’A /
Self-study Page Reference

The undersigned affirms {/ / / // / (institution name) meets the above federal

requirements relating to Ti W including those enumerated above.
Date: __ /. 0{/ g4 5/ } 2

Chief Executive Officer:

July, 2012
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Report of Independent Auditors

To the Board of Trustees of Amherst College:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and individual balance sheets and the related
consolidated and individual statements of activities and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Trustees of

Amherst College (the “Institution") and the individual financial positions of Amherst College
(the "College") and Folger Shakespeare Memorial Library (the "Library") at June 30, 2012,
and the consolidated and individual changes in their net assets and their consolidated and
individual cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Institution’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Pri ce.uda.-CJLou.._e_C.oor,v: Le P

October 22, 2012

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, 185 Asylum Street, Suite 2400, Hartford, CT 06103
T: (860) 241 7000, F: (860) 241 7590, www.pwc.com/us



ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Short term investments

Accounts receivable, net

Accrued interest receivable
Contributions receivable, net
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts

Other assets
Investments

Student loans receivable, net
Mortgages and notes receivable
Property, plant and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Line of credit

Deferred income and deposits
Liability for life income obligations
Pension and postretirement benefit obligations

Bonds payable

Government grants refundable
Interest rate swap agreement
Asset retirement obligations

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Unrestricted

Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

The accdmpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

THE TRUSTEES OF AMHERST COLLEGE
BALANCE SHEET, June 30, 2012

Folger
Ambherst Shakespeare

College Memorial Library Total
9,945,544 2,030,397 % 11,975,941
222,791 222,791
6,662,919 369,659 7,032,578
635,297 76,300 711,597
80,352,810 105,859 80,458,669
14,625,864 14,625,864
6,516,514 294,862 6,811,376
1,979,020,480 262,757,792 2,241,778,272
3,124,557 3,124,557
430,879 1,240,000 1,670,879
348,797,375 39,412,174 388,209,549
2,450,335,030 306,287,043 $ 2,756,622,073
7,850,791 279979 §$ 7,930,770
4,275,969 402,526 4,678,495
5,000,000 5,000,000
2,892,598 487,435 3,380,033
35,808,175 383,712 36,191,887
54,245,054 5,697,018 59,842,072
310,107,600 310,107,600
2,020,502 2,020,502
19,016,192 19,016,192
10,113,786 147,563 10,261,349
4,540,120 467,704 5,007,824
455,670,787 7,765,937 463,436,724
707,162,331 57,760,864 764,923,195
852,708,804 216,090,845 1,068,799,649
434,793,108 24,669,397 459,462 505
1,994,664,243 298,521,106 2,293,185,349
2,450,335,030 306,287,043 §$ 2,756,622,073
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THE TRUSTEES OF AMHERST COLLEGE

6 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended June 30, 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Decrease in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile decrease in net assets to
net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation
Unrealized loss on investments
Change in net value of life income obligations
Unrealized loss on interest rate swap agreement
Change in beneficial interest in perpetual trusts
Realized gain on investments, net
Contributions to permanent restricted endowment
Contributions to life income agreements
Contributions to plant
Receipt of contributed securities
Amortization of bond discount

(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable, net
Accrued interest receivable
Contributions receivable
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income and deposits
Liability for life income obligations
Pension and postretirement benefit obligations
Asset retirement obligations
Other liabilities

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of plant and equipment, net
Net change in deposits with trustee
Net change in mortgages and student loans receivable
Proceeds from sales of contributed securities
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments

Net cash provided by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Contributions to plant
Contributions to life income agreements
Contributions to permanent restricted endowment
Payments to beneficiaries under split interest agreements
Proceeds from line of credit
Decrease in government grants refundable
Payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided by financing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental data
Interest and net swap settlements paid
Gifts in kind
Purchases of plant and equipment included
in accounts payable
Contributed securities

Amherst Folger Shakespeare
College Memorial Library Total
$ (42,548,374) $ (7.,969,220) (50,517,594)
21,573,831 706,255 22,280,086
90,127,651 12,463,077 102,580,728
(3,571,190) (24,910) (3,596,100)
11,814,769 11,814,769
1,411,261 1,411,261
(105,062,120) (14,293,628) (119,355,748)
(31,681,144) (162,289) (31,843,433)
(6,104,107) (180,000) (6,284,107)
(4,303,048) (4,303,048)
(12,692,398) (151,508) (12,843,906)
87,400 87,400
(1,804,704) 242,428 (1,562,276)
421,344 128,776 550,120
20,496,243 (36,611) 20,459,632
(1,089,784) (22,389) (1,112,173)
(7,908,168) {130,079) (8,038,248)
556,156 334,910 891,066
(425,876) 102,540 (323,336)
1,815,553 157,526 1,973,079
8,219,631 2,049,423 10,269,054
7,824,770 4,849 7,829,619
2,465,121 59,918 2,525,039
(50,377,184) (6.720,932) (57,098,116)
(27,703,936) (1,480,863) (29,184,799)
1,425,373 1,425,373
672,584 (1,140,000) (467,416)
12,822,870 162,508 12,975,378
(393,686,377) (62,907,736) (446,594,113)
426,940,109 61,556,668 488,496,777
20,470,623 6,180,577 26,651,200
4,303,048 4,303,048
6,104,107 180,000 6,284,107
31,681,144 162,289 31,843,433
(4,453,639) (28,998) (4,482,637)
5,000,000 5,000,000
(7,555) (7,555)
(2,775,000) {(2,775,000)
39,852,105 313,291 40,165,396
9,945,544 (227,064) 9,718,480
2,257,461 2,257,461
$ 9,945,544 5 2,030,397 11,975,941
$ 10,261,254 10,261,254
2,196,898 2,196,898
4,053,269 4,053,269
12,685,900 $ 151,508 12,837,408

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



THE TRUSTEES OF AMHERST COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization

The Trustees of Amherst College (the “Institution") include the activities of Amherst College
("College") and Folger Shakespeare Memorial Library ("Library"). The College is an
academically rigorous, residential, full-time, private, nonsectarian institution of higher
education committed to the liberal education of young men and women. The Library is a
center for advanced research in Shakespeare and the early modern period. It also sponsors a
rich and varied season of cultural, educational and academic programs and is the home of The

Shakespeare Quarterly.

In accordance with the terms of the wills of Henry Clay Folger, Class of 1879, and his wife, Emily
Jordan Folger, the Institution established the Folger Shakespeare Memorial Library. The
original gift to establish the Library provides that 25% of the Folger Fund annual investment
income up to a maximum of $226,000 is to be distributed for the general operations of the
College. The maximum was distributed in 2011-2012.

The Institution qualifies as a tax-exempt, not-for-profit organization under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been made.

The Institution owns 100% of the common stock of Amherst Inn Company ("Company"). The
Company has been consolidated in the Institution’s financial statements.

In November 2011, the Company closed a transaction with two financial institutions (the "HTC
Investors") related to the historic rehabilitation of the Lord Jeffery Inn (the "project"). The
project, completed in 2011, will help to ensure the preservation and protection of a historic
structure through the restoration of the historic interior and exterior of the Lord Jeffery Inn.
Because the Company may not have been able to take full advantage of available historic tax
credits, the Company entered into a venture with the HTC Investors for this project. The HTC
Investors agreed to contribute an aggregate of approximately $2.8 million to the project in four
installments from the closing date in 2011 through expiration of the historical tax credit
recapture period in 2016, subject to the Company’s achievement of certain conditions that
include its compliance with applicable federal regulations. As of June 30, 2012, the HTC
Investors have paid $2.5 million for these credits; however, since the payment is subject to
recapture if certain conditions are not met, this contribution has been included in Other
Liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet. In exchange for their contributions, the HTC
Investors will receive substantially all of the benefits derived from the tax credits.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. The
preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of
contingencies at the date of the financial statements and revenues, gains and expenses



THE TRUSTEES OF AMHERST COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

recognized during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The
Institution’s significant estimates include the fair value of its alternative investments, reserves
for contributions, student loans and accounts receivable, retirement and postretirement
benefit obligations, asset retirement obligations, and its liability for life income obligations.

The classifications of net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are determined by
the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. In the accompanying financial
statements, net assets that have similar characteristics have been combined as follows:

Permanently Restricted -  Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the Institution. Generally, the donors
of these assets permit the Institution to use all or part of the
income earned on these assets. Such assets primarily include the
Institution's permanent endowment funds.

Temporarily Restricted - Net assets whose use by the Institution is subject to donor-
imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled by actions of the
Institution or that expire by the passage of time. Realized and
unrealized gains and losses on permanently and temporarily
restricted donor funds are recorded as temporarily restricted net
assets in accordance with Massachusetts law.

Unrestricted - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.
Net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of
the Board of Trustees or may otherwise be limited by contractual
agreements with outside parties.

Contributions are reported as increases in the applicable category of net assets. Expenses are
reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments are reported
as increases or decreases in the applicable category of unrestricted net assets unless their use
is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law. Revenues from other sources are
generally reported as increases in unrestricted net assets. Expirations of temporary restrictions
recognized on net assets (i.e., the donor stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the
stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications from temporarily
restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets. Temporary restrictions on gifts to acquire long-
lived assets are considered met in the period in which the assets are acquired or placed in
service.

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the
period the commitment is received. Contributions received with donor imposed restrictions
are reported as permanently or temporarily restricted revenues depending upon the specific
restriction. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met. Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their
estimated fair value at the date of gift. Contributions to be received after one year are



THE TRUSTEES OF AMHERST COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES, continued

discounted at a rate commensurate with the risk involved. Amortization of the discount is
recorded as contribution revenue. Allowance is made for uncollectible contributions based
upon management's judgment and analysis of the creditworthiness of the donors, past
collection experience and other relevant factors. Grant revenue from exchange contracts is
recognized in the period in which the grant expenditures are incurred.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

Absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary, The Board of Trustees of the Institution has
interpreted Massachusetts’ Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act
(“UPMIFA”) statute, which was enacted in July 2009, and related Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Attorney General guidance to require the preservation of donor-restricted
endowment funds at their fair value measured on the date of the gift. As a result of this
interpretation, the Institution classifies as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original
value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment and (b) accumulations to the permanent
endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at
the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The remaining portion of the donor-restricted
endowment fund that is not classified as permanently restricted net assets is classified as
temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the
Institution in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence prescribed by UPMIFA.

Investments
The Institution has established a diversified investment portfolio in accordance with the
investment strategy determined by the Investment Committee of the Board of Trustees.

Investments are recorded at fair value. The values of publicly traded fixed income and equity
securities are based upon quoted market prices at the close of business on

the last day of the fiscal year. Investments in units of non-publicly traded pooled funds are
valued at the unit value determined by the fund’s administrator based on quoted market
values of the underlying securities. Private equities and certain other nonmarketable
securities, including alternative investments, are valued using current estimates of fair value
based upon the net asset value of the funds determined by the general partner or investment
manager for the respective funds. Because alternative investments are not readily marketable,
the estimated fair value is subject to uncertainty and may differ from the value that would
have been used had a ready market for the investments existed. Such differences could be
material. The Institution’s alternative investments include venture capital funds, private equity
funds and investments in real estate and natural resources. These alternative investments
represented approximately 37% of the Institution’s investments at June 30, 2012.

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit
risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is possible that
changes in the values of investment securities could occur in the near term and that such
changes could materially affect investment balances and results included in the financial
statements.
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Under the terms of certain limited partnership agreements that represent venture capital,
private equity, real estate and oil and gas investments, the Institution is obligated to remit
additional funding periodically as capital calls are exercised.

Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on the trade date of the transaction. Realized
investment gains and losses are recorded based on the average cost method for all
investments except where specific identification is required by tax law.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Institution’s investment policies allow for the use of derivative financial instruments to
manage currency exchange and interest rate risks arising from investments in nonderivative
assets in proportion to the assets at risk. Such instruments consist of forward foreign exchange
and interest rate futures contracts entered into as part of the investments of the Institution.

As of June 30, 2012 the Institution had an investment in one fund that invests in interest rate
futures within its strategy.

The College utilizes swap agreements to moderate its exposure to interest rate risk on certain
bond issuances. (See note 6)

The Institution also has investments which participate directly, or have the option to
participate in, derivative financial instruments. These investments represent 27% of the
Institution’s total consolidated endowment funds. Derivatives held by investments in which
the Institution invests pose no off balance sheet risk to the Institution due to the limited
liability structure of the investment.

Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts represent resources neither in the possession of nor
under the control of the Institution, but held and administered by outside fiscal agents, with
the College deriving income from such funds. The trusts are recorded at their respective fair
values, which are reported by the outside fiscal agent.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost.

The Institution capitalizes the cost of construction and major improvements to buildings, and
purchases of equipment, and library books. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful life of the asset. Purchases for the Library’s collections are recorded
at cost. The collections are reduced by the proceeds from a sale, resulting in the recognition of
no gain or loss. Sales are not significant. (See note 11)

Inventories
Other assets include inventories which are valued at the lower of cost (utilizing the first-in,
first-out method) or market.
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Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months
or less at the time of purchase. Cash and cash equivalents representing assets of endowment
and similar funds and life income funds are included in long-term investments. Cash
equivalents are recorded at cost which approximates fair value.

Short Term Investments

Short term investments are comprised of equity securities received as gifts and identified for
liquidation by the Institution.

Life Income Obligations

Life income obligations result from annuity and life income agreements which are irrevocable
charitable remainder agreements. The assets held for these agreements are reported as part
of the Institution’s investments at their fair value. The College records contribution revenue
for the gift net of the liability for the present value of the estimated future payments to be
made to the beneficiaries. The liability has been calculated using discount rates ranging from
2.0% to 6.9% based upon the year of the agreement. The obligation is adjusted during the
term of the agreement for changes in the value of the assets, amortization of the discount and
other changes in the estimates of future benefits.

Asset Retirement Obligations

An asset retirement obligation (“ARQ”) is a legal obligation associated with the retirement of
long-lived assets. These liabilities are initially recorded at fair value and the related asset
retirement costs are capitalized by increasing the carrying amount of the related assets by the
same amount as the liability. Asset retirement costs are subsequently depreciated over the
useful lives of the related assets. Subsequent to initial recognition, the College records period-
to-period changes in the ARO liability resulting from the passage of time or revisions to either
the timing or the amount of the original estimate of undiscounted cash flows. The College
reduces ARO liabilities when the related obligations are settled.

Uncertain Tax Positions

The Institution is generally exempt from federal and state income taxes. Management
annually reviews for uncertain tax positions along with any related interest and penalties and
believes that the Institution has no uncertain tax positions that would have a material adverse
effect, individually or in the aggregate, upon the Institution’s balance sheet, or the related
statements of activities, or cash flows.

2. INVESTMENTS

The Institution records its investments at fair value. Fair value is the amount that would be
received when selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The degree of judgment utilized in developing
those assumptions generally correlates to the level of pricing observability. The availability of
observable inputs can vary among financial assets and liabilities.
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2. INVESTMENTS, continued

For investments, fair value is affected by a wide variety of factors including, the type of
investment, whether the investment is new and not yet established in the market place and
other characteristics particular to the investment. The inputs used for valuing investments are
not necessarily an indication of the risk associated with investing in those securities.

The Institution’s investments have been categorized based upon a fair value hierarchy
comprised of the following three broad levels:

Level 1: Valuations based on observable inputs that reflect quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets and liabilities. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include
exchange traded securities, short term money market funds and actively-traded obligations
issued by the U.S. Treasury.

Level 2: Valuations based upon quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are less active or other significant market-based inputs which are observable,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Valuations based on unobservable inputs that are significant to determining an

overall fair value measurement. Assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3 inputs include real

estate partnerships, private equity investments, and other illiquid securities with little, if

any, market activity. Valuation of these instruments entails a significant degree of
estimation and judgment.

The comparison of fair value and cost for investments in accordance with the fair value
hierarchy was as follows as of June 30, 2012:

COLLEGE
Fair Value Measurements as of June 30, 2012

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Cost

Financial Assets
Cash and equivalents  § 80,697,443 $ 80,697,443 $ 80,697,443
Due to broker, net (113,899) (113,899) (113,899)
Domestic equities 91,317,047 91,317,047 84,608,579
Global equities 31,244,762 S 44,815,389 76,060,151 70,327,036
Foreign equities 36,696,880 S 89,026,170 105,063,482 230,786,532 219,937,961
Private equities 384,866,936 384,866,936 311,990,872
Fixed income 111,214,884 54,013,239 61,292,733 226,520,856 210,580,788
Absolute return 18,067,508 16,456,028 498,143,288 532,666,824 362,612,621
Real estate and

natural resources 346,677,827 346,677,827 350,331,148
Other investments 547,177 8,993,586 9,540,763 9,888,019
Total Investments 369,671,802 159,495,437  1,449,853,241  1,979,020,480 1,700,860,568
Beneficial interest in

perpetual trusts 14,625,864 14,625,864 16,782,366

Total Financial Assets

As of June 30, 2012, the College had interest rate swaps with a fair value liability of
$19,016,192, which were valued using significant other observable inputs (Level 2).

$ 369,671,802 S 159,495,437 $1,464,479,105 $ 1,993,646,344 $1,717,642,934
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Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Cost

Financial Assets
‘Cash and equivalents $ 9,746,123 $ 9,746,123 $ 9,746,123
Due to broker, net (15,208) (15,208) (15,208)
Domestic equities 12,095,851 12,095,851 10,049,942
Global equities 4,172,107 5,984,191 10,156,298 8,802,302
Foreign equities 4,900,128 S 11,887,648 14,029,106 30,816,882 27,527,969
Private equities 51,391,203 51,391,203 39,049,525
Fixed income 13,706,998 7,212,378 8,184,408 29,103,784 25,343,302
Absolute return 2,412,551 2,197,371 66,516,980 71,126,902 45,385,471
Real estate and

natural resources 46,291,824 46,291,824 43,848,296
Other investments 153,626 69,586 1,820,921 2,044,133 2,102,221

Total Financial Assets $

47,172,176 S 21,366,983 $ 194,218,633 $ 262,757,792 $ 211,839,943

The College’s Investments as of June 30, 2012 are comprised of Endowment and Similar Funds
of $1,640,666,036, Life Income Funds of $76,431,961 and Other Funds of $261,922,483. The
Library’s Investments as of June 30, 2012 are comprised of Endowment and Similar Funds of
$260,209,626, Life Income Funds of $855,766 and Other Funds of $1,692,400.

The Institution’s major investment categories are comprised of the following:

Domestic Equities

The Domestic Equities category includes investments in separate accounts and

institutional commingled funds that invest primarily in the equity securities of U.S.
domiciled corporations. Fund managers generally hold long portfolio capital assets.
Underlying investment securities in the funds are selected based upon several criteria,
including, but not limited to: absolute and relative valuation, free cash flow, profitability,

strategic advantage, and corporate management quality. The fair values of the

investments in this category are estimated using the net asset value (NAV) per share of
the fund, or in the case of the majority of these assets where the securities are directly
owned in a separate account, they are recorded at the market value of the underlying

securities at the close of business.

Global Equities

The Global Equities category includes investments in separate accounts and institutional
commingled funds that invest primarily in the equity securities of both U.S. domiciled
and foreign corporations. Fund managers generally hold long portfolio capital assets.
Underlying investment securities in the funds are selected based upon several criteria,
including, but not limited to: absolute and relative valuation, free cash flow, profitability,

strategic advantage, and corporate management quality. The fair values of the
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investments in this category are estimated using the net asset value (NAV) per share of
the partnerships.

Foreign Equities

The Foreign Equities category includes investments in institutional commingled pooled
funds that invest primarily in the equity securities of non-U.S. domiciled corporations.
Fund managers generally hold long portfolio capital assets. Underlying investment
securities in the funds are selected based upon several criteria, including, but not limited
to: absolute and relative valuation, free cash flow, profitability, strategic advantage, and
corporate management quality. The fair values of the investments in this category are
estimated using the net asset value (NAV) per share of the funds.

Private Equities

The Private Equities category includes investments in limited partnerships that invest
primarily in unlisted, non-public U.S. and non-U.S. domiciled companies. Private Equity
includes venture capital (early-stage) and buyout (later-stage) investments. Underlying
investment securities in the funds are selected based upon several criteria, including, but
not limited to: absolute and relative valuation, uniqueness of market and product,
strategic advantage, corporate management quality, financial conditions and financing
requirements, and anticipated exit strategies. Liquidity for these funds is provided in
varying degrees, but is mostly greater than five years. The fair values of the investments
in this category are estimated using the General Partner’s valuation of investments,
generally equal to or based upon the reported capital account or net asset value (NAV)
of the underlying investee funds.

Fixed Income

The Fixed Income category includes investments in separate accounts and commingled
funds that invest primarily in the debt securities of U.S. domiciled corporations. Fund
managers hold long and short portfolio capital assets. Underlying investment securities
in the funds are selected based upon several criteria, including, but not limited to:
absolute and relative valuation, duration, convexity, liquidity, credit risk, term structures,
and strategic advantage. Liquidity for these funds is provided in varying degrees, ranging
from daily to annual increments. The fair values of the investments in this category are
estimated using the net asset value (NAV) per share of the funds or in the case of the
separate accounts where the securities are directly owned, they are recorded at the
market value of the underlying securities at the close of business.

Absolute Return

The Absolute Return category includes investments in commingled funds that invest
primarily in the equity, debt, and derivative securities of U.S. and non-U.S. domiciled
corporations. Fund managers hold long and short portfolio capital assets. Underlying
investment securities in the funds are selected based upon several criteria, including, but
not limited to: absolute and relative valuation, free cash flow, profitability, strategic
advantage, and corporate management quality. The fund managers may also invest in
securities related to interest rates, exchange rates, and privately held assets. The fair
values of the investments in this category are estimated using the net asset value (NAV)
per share of the funds.
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Real Estate and Natural Resources

The Real Estate and Natural Resources category includes investments in limited
partnerships that invest primarily in unlisted, non-public U.S. and non-U.S. real estate,
timber, and oil and gas assets. Underlying investment securities in the funds are selected
based upon several criteria, including, but not limited to: absolute and relative valuation,
uniqueness of market and product, strategic advantage, corporate management quality,
financial conditions and financing requirements, and anticipated exit strategies. Liquidity
for these funds is provided in varying degrees, but is generally greater than seven years.
The fair values of the investments in this category are estimated using the General
Partner’s valuation of investments, generally equal to or based upon the reported
capital account or net asset value (NAV) of the underlying investee funds.

Other

The Other category includes investments in separate account and general partnership
funds that have been or are currently being liquidated.

The unfunded commitment and redemption frequencies of the Institution’s investment
categories as of June 30, 2012 were as follows:

INSTITUTION
Investment Unfunded
Strategy Commitments Notice Period and Redemption Frequency

Domestic equities No notice period applicable; immediate redemption
Global equities Daily - 30 day notice; between daily and five year redemption
Foreign equities 6 - 90 day notice; between monthly and five year redemption
Private equities $ 159,101,000 Not redeemable
Fixed income 3,494,000 Zero - 90 day notice; between immediate and not redeemable
Absolute return 30 -180 day notice; between quarterly and five year redemption
Real estate and

natural resources 66,114,000 Not redeemable

$__228,709,000

The investments in domestic equities do not possess a defined liquidation period. These
investments can be liquidated as deemed appropriate by the Institution. The Institution is
unable to redeem its investments in private equities, real estate and natural resources until the
underlying partnerships are dissolved and the funds closed, although the Institution would have
the ability to liquidate these partnerships through a negotiated transaction in the secondary
market. Investments in private equities, real estate and natural resources have remaining
durations from one to thirteen years as of June 30, 2012.

15
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The reconciliation of the Level 3 total financial assets for the College and Library as of June 30,
2012 are as follows:

COLLEGE

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Net
Realized and Net
Unrealized Purchases Transfers
Investment Beginning Gains and and Sales and in {Out) of Ending
Category Balance {Losses) Issuances Settlements Level 3 Balance
Global equities S 42,019,296 S 2,805,075 $ 333,215 § (342,197) 44,815,389
Foreign equities 137,635,751 2,870,263 5,263,088 (10,278,238) {(30,427,382) 105,063,482
Private equities 400,197,641 24,808,783 60,586,325 (75,880,983)  (24,844,830) 384,866,936
Fixed income 60,082,044 2,268,118 85,124,604 (86,182,033) 61,292,733
Absolute return 433,918,474 5,738,944 61,486,059 (3,000,189) 498,143,288
Real estate and
natural resources 326,258,975 6,292,503 61,880,457 (47,657,961) (97,147) 346,677,827
Other investments 10,710,773 (9,448,808) 107,951 {17,318,307) 24,941,977 8,993,586
Perpetual trusts 16,037,125 (1,411,261) 14,625,864
Total Level 3

Financial Assets $ 1,426,861,079 $ 33,923,617 $ 274,781,689 _(240,659,908) $ (30,427,382) $ 1,464,479,105

LIBRARY

Fair Value Measurements Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

Net
Realized and Net
Unrealized Purchases Transfers
Investment Beginning Gains and and Sales and In (Out) of Ending
Category Balance (Losses) Issuances Settlements Level 3 Balance
Global equities S 5,740,758 § 389,188 S 45,352 § (191,107) S 5,984,191
Foreign equities 18,804,066 59,907 716,335 (1,394,153) $ (4,157,049) 14,029,106
Private equities 54,675,782 3,243,949 8,246,128 {11,380,306) (3,354,350) 51,391,203
Fixed income 8,208,527 447,495 11,585,921 (12,057,535) 8,184,408
Absolute return 59,282,791 870,639 8,368,587 (2,005,037} 66,516,980
Real estate and
natural resources 44,574,279 (1,096,508) 8,422,266 {5,594,941) {13,272) 46,291,824
Other investments 1,940,211 (1,280,368) 15,290 (2,251,282) 3,397,070 1,820,921
Total Level 3

Financial Assets $ 193226414 $ 2634302 $ 37,399879 $ (34,874,361) $ (4,167,601) $ 194,218,633
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Certain investments were transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 as notice periods for redemption
were 90 days or less.

The amount of total unrealized net losses on Level 3 assets for the year ended June 30, 2012 is
$38,421,000 for the College and $3,873,000 for the Library.

Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Institution has adopted a spending policy that is calculated as a percentage of the average
market value of the endowment for the three previous years. This allows for the smoothing of
growth and decline in endowment fair values. Specifically, the formula used to set the amount
of annual spending increases the prior year’s distribution by a factor equal to inflation plus the
percentage growth in the endowment from prior year capital gifts. This amount is compared to
the budgetary needs of the Institution and is increased, if possible, to reflect the use of market
growth over time. The calculated amount is also evaluated as a percentage of the endowment’s
market value and the growth portion of the formula would be held to a rate at or below inflation
if the spending rate were to continue to exceed 5.0% over time. It is expected that over time the
rate will range between 3.5% and 5.0% of the average market value of the endowment for the
three previous years — higher in years of market decline and lower in years of market growth.

The Institution has adopted investment policies for its endowment assets that seek to ensure
that current and future spending requirements are supported, while also preserving the
endowment fund in perpetuity. Endowment assets include those assets that have been
restricted by the donor or designated by the Trustees and are invested to provide future revenue
to support the Institution’s activities. Under the Institution’s investment policy, as approved by
the Committee on Investment of the Board of Trustees, an asset allocation or strategic policy
portfolio is developed based on long-term return, risk and correlation assumptions that seek to
balance the need for liquidity, preservation of purchasing power, and risk tolerance. The
Institution uses two benchmarks to assess aggregate performance:

Simple Market Benchmark — serves to help evaluate the value added from asset
allocation in creating a well-diversified investment program versus a non-diversified
market index. This benchmark consists of: 60% S&P 500 Index and 40% Barclays
Aggregate Bond Index.

Strategic Policy Portfolio Benchmark — serves to evaluate the impact of manager selection
and active management versus passive management. This benchmark is a weighted
average return derived by applying the target policy weights of each asset class to the
performance of the respective asset class benchmarks.

The Institution expects its endowment funds, over time, to provide an average real rate of return
of approximately 3.5% percent annually (or a nominal annual rate of return of approximately

6.0%). The investments in the Institution’s endowment portfolio involve various risks, and actual
returns in any given year may vary from this anticipated long-term average annual rate of return.

To satisfy its long-term return objectives, the Institution relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). The Institution has established a strategic policy portfolio
that is diversified across asset classes.
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Included in unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently restricted net assets are the
College's and Library's endowment and similar funds and life income funds.

Endowment and similar funds is a commonly used term to refer to the resources that have been
restricted by the donor or designated by the Trustees that will be invested to provide future
revenue to support the Institution's activities. Included in endowment are funds which were not
restricted by the donor and, accordingly, are unrestricted net assets of the Institution.

Included in Endowment are the Consolidated Endowment Funds for both the College and the
Library and separately invested endowment funds. The fair value of the Amherst College
Consolidated Endowment Fund as of June 30, 2012 was $1,639,587,886 with a per share fair
value of $19.75 ($20.32 at June 30, 2011). The fair value of the separately invested endowment
funds as of June 30, 2012 was $1,078,150. The fair value of the Folger Fund as of June 30, 2012
was $260,209,626 with a per share fair value of $30.07 ($30.95 at June 30, 2011). The total
endowment shares in the Amherst College Consolidated Endowment Fund as of June 30, 2012
were 83,008,679. The total endowment shares in the Folger Fund as of June 30, 2012 were
8,652,269,

Net assets of life income funds represent the difference between the investment assets of the
funds and the estimated liability for the obligation to beneficiaries.

Net assets included the following endowment and similar funds at June 30, 2012:

COLLEGE
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment funds

Endowment

Income unrestricted S 5905371 $ 109,526,043 $ 113,992,971 $ 229,424,385

Income restricted 9,271,473 675,207,168 233,888,976 918,367,617
Quasi-endowment

Income unrestricted 355,794,321 355,794,321

Income designated 80,613,839 80,613,839

Income restricted 56,250,649 215,225 ___  56,465.874

S 507835653 $ 784,948,436 S 347881947 § 1,640,666,036

Life income funds .
Income S 4,408,939 S 835,408 S 5,244,347

Balanced 3,158,668 3,482,082 6,640,750
Annuity 1,468,095 1,425,016 2,893,111
Unitrusts 15126693 __ 10,746393 ___ 25,873,086

$._.24162395 S 16488899 §__ 40651294
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Endowment funds
Endowment

Income unrestricted
Income restricted

Quasi-endowment
Income unrestricted
Income designated

Income restricted

Life Income Funds

LIBRARY
Temporarily Permanently
U rict i Restri Total
s 172, 157,961 S 5,944,903 S 178,102,864
S 2,311,366 40,206,805 18,551,805 61,069,976
10,027,695 10,027,695
9,368,237 9,368,237
1,188.509 452345 1,640,854
S 22,895,807 212 111 24,496,708 $ 260,209,626
$ 299,365 $ 172,689 S 472,054

The activity of the endowment and similar funds net assets for the College and Library for the
year ended June 30, 2012 is as follows:

Endowment net assets,
beginning of year

Investment return:

Investment income

Net realized and unrealized
appreciation (depreciation)
Total investment return

Contributions

Appropriation of endowment
return for expenditure

Other changes

Endowment net assets, end
of year '

COLLEGE
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total _

$ 513,589,182 § 816,170,707 S 311,750,918 $ 1,641,510,807

368,869 882,063 1,250,932
6,337,236 15,197,469 (9.409) __ 21,525,296
6,706,105 15,197,469 872,654 22,776,228
7,527,706 110,975 31,681,144 39,319,825
(20,050,883) (46,530,715) (66,581,598)
63,543 3,577,231 3,640,774

$__ 507,835,653 $ 784,948,436 S 347,881,947 S 1,640,666,036
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LIBRARY
Temporarily Permanently
nrestri Restrict Restricted Total
Endowment net assets,
beginning of year S 23,292,559 § 219,741,757 § 24,137,611 S 267,171,927
Investment return:
Investment income 102,918 8,969 111,887
Net realized and unrealized
appreciation 162791 ___ 1,719,061 1,881,852
Total investment return 265,709 1,728,030 1,993,739
Contributions 319,520 162,289 481,809
Appropriation of endowment
return for expenditure (834,291) (8,594,097) (9,428,388)
Other changes (147,690) (58,579) 196,808 (9,461)
Endowment net assets, end
of year s 22,895,807 S 212,817,111 S 24,496,708 S 260,209,626

Total Return Distribution on Investments

The Institution adds interest and dividends earned on the College’s investments and the Folger
Fund, which represent approximately 99% of the investments of its endowments and similar
funds, to the income allocation pools from which returns are distributed to the respective funds
at a predetermined, per share rate set annually by the Board of Trustees. The Institution's
spending is determined on a total return basis. The total amount distributed for spending in
2011-2012 was $78,727,604 for the College and $11,342,264 for the Library. In addition,
investment manager fees and expenses, which include the general partners’ share of gains in
limited partnerships, were distributed from this pool and were $36,695,474 for the College and
$4,712,221 for the Library. Interest and dividend income earned in 2011-2012 by the Funds was
$48,841,212 and $6,626,097 for the College and Library, respectively. The amount distributed in
excess of interest and dividend income earned was provided by transferring realized gains from
the Institution’s investment pools of $66,581,866 for the College and $9,428,388 for the Library.
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Contributions receivable, net, are summarized as follows at June 30, 2012:

College Library
Unconditional promises expected
to be collected within:
One year s 30,490,636 § 104,085
Two to five years 33,777,347 2,000
Over five years 22,520,627
86,788,610 106,085
Less: Unamortized discount
and allowance for uncollectible accounts (6,435,800) (226)
S 80,352,810 S 105,859

At June 30, 2012 the College had also received conditional promises to give of $5,650,000. These
conditional promises to give will not be recognized as assets until the conditions are substantially
met. They are generally restricted for specific purposes stipulated by the donors, primarily
endowments for faculty support, scholarships, buildings and improvements or general

operating support.

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment as of June 30, 2012 consisted of the following:

Useful Life College Library
Land - S 8,328,925 S 908,397
Land improvements 10 12,958,397
Buildings and improvements 50 393,232,666 29,196,408
Faculty residences 30 11,763,476
Equipment 5-10 69,023,378 3,694,529
Library books 10 33,004,399
Folger collection 20,095,988
528,311,241 53,895,322
Less: Accumulated depreciation (202,580,309) (14,483,148)
325,730,932 39,412,174
Construction in progress 23,066,443

S 348797375 _$ 39,412.174

In fiscal year 2011-2012, depreciation of these assets amounted to $21,573,831 for the College
and $706,255 for the Library.

As of June 30, 2012 the College had open commitments for the construction of buildings of
approximately $2,422,924.
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6. BONDS PAYABLE

The Institution has financed the cost of constructing and renovating various College facilities
through the issuance of Massachusetts Development Finance Agency (the “Agency" or “MDFA”)
bonds. In addition, the Institution issued taxable bonds in fiscal year 2009 for working capital
and other eligible purposes.

The College's fiscal year 2012 debt service and bonds payable as of June 30, 2012 were as
follows:

MDFA Final Year of 2012 Debt
Series/Taxable Bonds Maturity Interest Rates Service Bonds Payable
F 2026 Variable, (0.01% - 0.22% $ 1,836,814 S 35,400,000
in 2011-2012)
H 2033 Variable, (0.10% - 1.00% 840,572 40,825,000

in 2011-2012)

l 2028 Variable, (0.01% - 0.22% 30,424 29,700,000
in 2011-2012)

J-1 2035 Variable, {0.01% - 0.22% 30,731 30,000,000
in 2011-2012)

J-2 2035 Variable, (0.01% - 0.23% 17,933 20,000,000
in 2011-2012)

K-1 2021 Fixed, {3.50% - 5.00%) 719,554 5,935,000
K-2 2038 Variable, (1.70% - 2.75% 1,131,317 50,520,000
in 2011-2012)

Taxable Bonds, Series
2009A 2039 Fixed, 5.875% 5,875,000 100,000,000

Less discount (2,272,400)

$ 10,482,345 $ 310,107,600

The issuance costs incurred in connection with the bonds are amortized on a straight line basis
over the remaining period the bonds are outstanding.

The Series F bonds are a variable rate issue and a general obligation of the College. The average
interest rate for fiscal year 2011-2012 was 0.10% and the interest rate at June 30, 2012 was
0.15%. The bonds are redeemable at par prior to maturity at the option of the Agency with the
consent of the College.

The Series H bonds are a variable rate issue and a general obligation of the College. The average
interest rate for fiscal year 2011-2012 was 0.83% and the interest rate at June 30, 2012
was 1.00%. The bonds are subject to optional redemption at par plus accrued interest at the
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6. BONDS PAYABLE, continued

option of the College.

The Series | bonds are a variable rate issue and a general obligation of the College. The average
interest rate for fiscal year 2012-2013 was 0.10% and the interest rate at June 30, 2012 was

0.15%. The bonds are subject to optional redemption at par plus accrued interest at the option
of the College.

The Series J bonds are a variable rate issue and a general obligation of the College. The interest
rate on the issue averaged 0.10% for the Series J-1 bonds and 0.09% for the Series J-2 bonds for
the fiscal year 2011-2012. The interest rate was 0.15% for the Series J-1 bonds and 0.15% for the
Series J-2 bonds at June 30, 2012. The bonds are subject to optional redemption at par plus
accrued interest at the option of the College.

The Series K-1 bonds were issued at a fixed rate and are a general obligation of the College. The
average interest rate on the issue was 4.01% for the year ended June 30, 2012. The Series K-2
bonds are a variable rate issue and a general obligation of the College. The average interest rate
for fiscal year 2011-2012 was 2.24% and the interest rate at June 30, 2012 was 1.70%. The
proceeds were used for capital projects. The Series K-1 bonds maturing on or after November 1
2018 are subject to optional redemption after that date, at the option of the Agency with the
written consent of the College or at the written direction of the College. The Series K-2 bonds
are not subject to optional redemption.

The Series 2009A taxable bonds were issued at a fixed rate and are a general obligation of the
College. The proceeds of the bonds were used by the College for the payment of the issuance
costs, working capital, and other eligible expenses. The bonds are subject to optional
redemption at the consent of the College with a make-whole provision.

In connection with the issuance of the Series | and Series J bonds, the College entered into
interest rate swap agreements to moderate its exposure to interest rate changes and to lower
the overall cost of borrowing. The swaps were not designated as cash flow hedges for the bonds.
The interest rate swap agreements effectively change the interest rate exposure on the issues
from a variable rate to a fixed rate of 3.07% for Series | and 3.13% for Series J. The interest rate
swap agreements have a notional amount of $79,700,000 as of June 30, 2012 and termination
date equal to the principal amount and maturity date of the respective bonds. On June 30, 2012,
the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $19,016,192 and was
recorded on the balance sheet. The total of the increase in the fair value from the prior year
balance and the net settlements was $14,015,467 and is recorded as an expense in the College’s
statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2012.

The principal payments on such bonds for the fiscal years 2012-13 through 2016-17 is
$4,405,000; $4,530,000; $4,680,000; $4,840,000; and $5,000,000, respectively. The combined
debt service thereafter approximates $288,920,000.
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6. BONDS PAYABLE, continued

The Series F, H, |, J and K-2 bonds are subject to tender by bondholders. As of June 30, 2012, the
Series J-2 bonds are set to remarket in a daily mode, the Series F, 1 and J-1 bonds set in a weekly
mode and Series H and K-2 in a term mode until November 2014 and November 2016,
respectively.

If these bonds had been fully tendered as of June 30, 2012, or on their next remarketing date,
the principal payments for fiscal years 2011-12 through 2016-17 would have been
approximately, $115,595,000; $515,000; $41,360,000; $555,000 and $51,100,000, respectively.
The principal payments thereafter would have approximated $103,255,000. The College has not
experienced a failed remarketing of its bonds.

The fair value of the bonds payable at June 30, 2012 approximates $354,000,000.
7. LINES OF CREDIT

The College has uncollateralized bank lines of credit for purposes of repurchasing its outstanding
bonds if they are unable to be remarketed as of June 30, 2012 as follows:

Available
Borrowing Balance
Capacity Outstanding Interest Rate Termination Date
$ 50,000,000 Eurodollar rate plus 0.08% June 27, 2014
$ 50,000,000 Higher of prime rate plus 1.5% or federal July 31, 2012

funds rate plus 3.0%, not to exceed 6.25%

The College has uncollateralized bank lines of credit for operational purposes as of June 30, 2012
as follows:

Avallable
Borrowing Balance
Capacity Outstanding Interest Rate Termination Date
$ 37,500,000 Eurodollar rate plus 0.25% May 16, 2014
$ 37,500,000 Eurodollar rate plus 0.25% May 18, 2014

$ 25,000,000 $ 5,000,000 Eurodollar rate plus 0.25% February 25, 2014
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The Institution has TIAA-CREF defined contribution pension plans for faculty, administrative and
staff employees of the College, and for Library administrative employees. Eligibility for the plans
begins following two years of employment for individuals, unless they were previously enrolled
in a comparable plan and therefore are immediately eligible. Contributions to the plans, based
on a percentage of salaries, were $5,329,992 for the College and $473,055 for the Library for the
year ended June 30, 2012.

The Institution has maintained a TIAA-CREF noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan for
College staff employees who, prior to July 1, 1994, were not covered by the defined contribution
plan, were at least twenty-one years of age, and had completed one year of service. All
participants in this plan are fully vested as of June 30, 2012. Retirement benefits are calculated
based on a percentage of final three-year average salary times the participant's years

of service with a minimum benefit payable equal to $50 per year times the number of years of
credited service. Years of service for purposes of calculating the benefit accrual were frozen on
June 30, 1994, when all active College employees began participating in the defined contribution
plan. The defined benefit plan continues to provide prior service benefits for participants active
at July 1, 1994, and supplemental benefits to certain long-term employees whose retirement
benefit would have been negatively affected by the change.

The Institution has a TIAA-CREF noncontributory, defined benefit pension plan for Library
employees who are not covered by the defined contribution plan, who are at least twenty-one
years of age, and who have completed one year of service. An employee is fully vested after five
years of participation in the plan. Retirement benefits are calculated based on a percentage of
final three-year average salary times the participant's years of service with a minimum benefit
payable equal to $50 per year times the number of years of credited service.

The Institution contributes to each defined benefit pension plan an amount each year equal to
the required plan contribution as of the beginning of the plan year and interest to the date of
payment. The Institution contributed $1,062,748 to the College’s Plan and $205,996 to the
Library’s Plan in 2011-2012.

The plan’s accumulated benefit obligation at June 30, 2012 was $24,076,138 and $2,853,389 for
the College Plan and Library Plan, respectively. Net actuarial loss amortization of $893,222 and
$126,595 is expected to be recognized in fiscal year 2013 for the College Plan and Library Plan,
respectively. '
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The following were the components of net periodic pension cost for the defined benefit pension
plans for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012:

College Employee Library Employee

Plan Plan
Service cost S 6,215 S 91,541
Interest cost 1,153,531 134,307
Expected return on plan assets (1,088,051) (120,475)
Amortization of net actuarial loss 360,411
Net periodic pension cost S 432,106 § 105,373

The following is a summary of the projected benefit obligation, plan assets, and funded status of
the defined benefit plans as of June 30, 2012;

College Employee  Library Employee

Plan Plan
Change in projected benefit obligation:

Projected benefit obligation, June 30, 2011 S 22,019,680 S 2,665,782
Decrease due to benefits paid (1,115,752) (96,785}
Increase due to employee service 6,215 91,541
Increase due to accrual of interest 1,153,531 134,307
Increase due to changes in actuarial

assumptions and other sources 3,990,766 830,682

Projected benefit obligation, June 30, 2012 S 26,054,440 S 3,625,527

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, June 30, 2011 S 14,628,063 § 1,574,743
Actual return 1,504 22,050
Employer contributions 1,062,748 205,996
Change in surrender charge (5,145) 1,880
Benefits paid (1,115,752) (96,785)

Fair value of plan assets, June 30, 2012 S 14571418 § 1,707,884

Funded status:
Projected benefit obligation . S (26,054,440) S (3,625,527)
Fair value of plan assets 14,571,418 1,707,884
Accrued pension cost S (11,483,022) S (1,917,643)
Cumulative Net Actuarial Loss:
Cumulative net actuarial loss, June 30, 2011 s 5,207,817 § 372,132
Amortization (360,411)
Net loss 5,082,458 927,227

Cumulative net actuarial loss, June 30, 2012 S 9,929,864 S 1,299,359
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Defined benefit plan assets consist of Deposit Administration Group Annuity Contracts with
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association and College Retirement Equities Fund.

The discount rate used in determining benefit obligations as of June 30, 2012 was 3.90%. The
rate of compensation increase used in determining benefit obligations and the net periodic
pension cost was 3.50%. The discount rate used in determining the net periodic pension cost
was 5.40% and the long-term rate of return was 7.50%.

The expected long-term rate of return on plan assets is determined by reviewing historical
returns, taking into account current asset diversification between equity and fixed income
investments. Current market factors such as inflation and interest rates are evaluated.

The asset allocations at June 30, 2012 of the defined benefit plans were as follows:

College Employee Plan Library Employee Plan
Equity securities S 8,620,820 59% § 816,851 48%
Fixed income 5,950,598 41% 891,033 52%
Total S 14,571,418 100% S 1,707,884 100%

The defined benefit plans’ assets are valued using the same fair value hierarchy as the
Institution’s investments as described in note 2, Investments.

The following table summarizes the Institution’s fair values of investments by major type held by
the defined benefit plans at June 30, 2012:

College Employee Plan
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity securities S 8,620,820 S 8,620,820
Fixed income S 5,950,598 5,950,598
Total S 8,620,820 $ 5950598 § 14,571,418
Library Employee Plan
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Equity securities 816,851 S 816,851
Fixed income S 891,033 891,033

Total S 816851 $ 891033 $ 1,707,884
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The reconciliation of Level 3 total investments for the defined benefit plans as of June 30, 2012 is
as follows:

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

College Library
Employee Employee Plan
Plan Total
Beginning balance S 5,875,905 5 947,653 S 6,823,558
Contributions 954,600 954,600
Interest income 240,990 38,285 279,275
Sales, net (1,115,752) (96,785) (1,212,537)
Change in surrender charge (5,145) 1,880 (3,265)
Total S 5950598 $ 891033 $ 6841631

The equity securities account seeks a favorable long-term return through both appreciation of
capital and investment income by investing primarily in a broadly diversified portfolio of common
stocks. The account is divided into three segments. One segment is designed to track U.S. equity
markets and invests in the Russell 3000 Index. Another segment contains stocks that are selected
for their investment potential and the third segment invests in foreign stocks and other equity
securities.

The fixed income account guarantees both principal and a specified interest rate. The account
seeks to achieve the highest rate of return over long periods of time, within reasonable risk
measures. Investments include publicly traded bonds, direct loans to business and industry,
commercial mortgages and income producing real estate.

The Institution expects the 2012-2013 contribution to be reasonably consistent with the current
year. The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be
paid:

College Library

Employee Plan Employee Plan
2013 S 1,315,000 S 93,000
2014 1,203,000 130,000
2015 1,238,000 132,000
2016 1,265,000 143,000
2017 1,326,000 157,000
2018 - 2022 7,440,000 976,000

Total $ 13,787,000 $ 1,631,000
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The Institution offers a Phased Retirement Program to faculty of the College. Faculty members
may enter the program at any time between age 60 and 65. Upon entering the program, faculty
members receive a reduced salary. Participants also receive stipends for part-time work which
they can continue until age 70 when they fully retire. The Institution has recorded a liability for
this program of $4,972,549 as of June 30, 2012. This program is funded on a cash basis as
benefits are paid.

9. OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Institution provides a defined benefit health insurance plan to eligible College employees
employed before July 1, 2003 who have met certain age and service criteria. The Institution also
provides a defined benefit health insurance plan to eligible Library employees and their
dependents who have met certain age and service criteria. The Institution funds these plans on a
cash basis as benefits are paid.

The Institution provides a defined contribution health program for the College employees that do
not qualify for the defined benefit plan described above. Under this plan, each year eligible
participants (regular, benefited employees) are entitled to a contribution based on 66.7% of the
College’s Medicare supplemental insurance cost and interest that is credited to a notional
account. Eligibility for contributions begins at age 40 for a maximum of 25 years and vesting
requires 10 years of service after the age of 40 and attainment of age 62 when retiring from the
College.

As of June 30, 2012 a $37,789,483 and $3,679,375 postretirement benefit obligation liability is
recorded for the College and Library, respectively.

The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for the Institution's plans as of June
30, 2012 were as follows:

College Employee Library Employee

Service cost S 739,659 S 103,051
Interest cost 1,505,249 136,178
Amortization of prior service credit (160,262)

Net periodic postretirement benefit cost S 2,084,646 S 239,229
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The following provides a reconciliation of the accumulated benefit obligation, plan assets and
funded status of the plans:

College Library Employee
Change in accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation
Benefit obligation, June 30, 2011 $ 32,970,783 $ 2,456,556
Service cost 739,659 103,051
Interest cost 1,505,249 136,178
Medicare Part D subsidy 104,006
Plan participants’ contributions 216,406 13,150
Change in actuarial assumptions 3,444,691 1,076,709
Benefits paid (1,191,311) (106,269)
Benefit obligation, June 30, 2012 S 37,789,483 S 3,679,375
Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets, June 30, 2011 S 0o s 0
Employer contribution 870,899 93,119
Plan participants’ contributions 216,406 13,150
Medicare Part D subsidy 104,006
Benefits paid (1,191,311) (106,269)
Fair value of plan assets, June 30, 2012 S 0 S 0
Funded status
Retirees and dependents S (15,935,599} S (1,280,822)
Actives fully eligible (1,914,242) (226,864)
Actives not fully eligible (19,939,642) (2,171,689)
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (37,789,483) (3,679,375)
Fair value of plan assets 0 0
Accrued postretirement benefit cost S (37,789,483) § (3,679,375)

As of June 30, 2012 the College Plan had a cumulative net actuarial loss of $9,082,302 and a
cumulative net prior service credit of $173,135 recognized in unrestricted net assets. The Library
Plan had a cumulative net actuarial loss of $1,306,289. In fiscal year 2013 the College has an
expected amortization from unrestricted net assets into net periodic benefit of $74,178.

The discount rate used in determining the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation as of
June 30, 2012 was 3.90% compared to 5.40% at June 30, 2011. The assumed health care cost
trend used in measuring the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 9.00% in 2012
declining gradually to 5.00% in 2016 The discount rate used in determining the net periodic
postretirement benefit cost at June 30, 2012 which is determined as of July 1, 2011 was 5.40%.
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Following is the effect of a change in the trend rates at June 30, 2012:
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College Employee Library Employee
Plan Plan
Impact of 1% increase in health care cost trend
Interest cost plus service cost s 290,000 S 47,000
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation 5,492,000 706,000
Impact of 1% decrease in health care cost trend
Interest cost plus service cost (236,000) (37,000)
Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation S (4,432,000) $§ (559,000)

The Institution expects its 2012-2013 contribution to be reasonably consistent with the current
year. The following benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, are expected to be

paid by the Institution:

College Employee Library Employee
Plan Plan

2013 S 1,478,000 S 80,000
2014 1,550,000 88,000
2015 1,626,000 97,000
2016 1,738,000 108,000
2017 1,846,000 123,000
2018 - 2022 10,236,000 809,000
Total $ 18,474,000 S 1,305,000
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10. TEMPORARILY AND PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were available for the following purposes at June 30, 2012

College Library

Program services $ 31,886,433 § 2,974,368
Student loans 3,374,668
Life income funds 24,162,396 299,366
Buildings and improvements 8,336,871
Realized and unrealized gains available for

distribution under the limits of total return policy 779,699,411 212,784,129
Other 5,249,025 32,982

s 852,708,804 S 216,090,845

Temporarily restricted net assets released from restrictions during the year for the Institution's
activities were used for the following purposes:

College Library
Program services S 35,509,705 § 962,034
Buildings and improvements 3,273,902
Total return distribution 46,530,715 8,594,097
S 85,314322 & 9,556,131

Permanently restricted net assets are summarized as follows at June 30, 2012:

College Library
Permanent endowment S 347,881,947 S 24,496,708
Contributions receivable 55,796,399
Life income funds 16,488,898 172,689

Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts

14,625,864

S 434793108 S 24669397

11. COLLECTIONS

The Folger Shakespeare Memorial Library holds the largest and most complete collection of
Shakespeareana in the world and the largest collection of English printed books from 1475 to
1640 outside of England, as well as extensive Continental Renaissance holdings. The collection
spans a broad range of subjects and includes books, manuscripts, documents, paintings,
illustrations, tapestries, furnishings, musical instruments, scores, and curios from the Renaissance
and theater history. The collection is a source of research for scholars from all over the world and
is shared with the public through extensive exhibitions.

The collection is exhibited within the Folger Shakespeare Memorial Library in Washington, D.C.
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where the collection is maintained in secure, climate controlled storage.

The Emily Dickinson Museum consists of two historic houses, and their contents, in the center of
Amherst, Massachusetts, closely associated with the poet Emily Dickinson and members of her
family during the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries. The Museum is dedicated to
educating diverse audiences about Emily Dickinson’s life, family, creative work, times, and
enduring relevance, and to preserving and interpreting the Homestead and The Evergreens as
historical resources for the benefit of scholars and the general public.

The College has collections housed in the Mead Art Museum and the Beneski Museum of Natural
History. The Mead Art Museum exhibits selections from its diverse collection of 16,000 works
including American art, Russian modernist art, French art, British portraiture, African art,
Japanese art, 19™ and 20" century photography, and master and modern prints and drawings.
The Beneski Museum of Natural History houses research collections of vertebrate and
invertebrate paleontology, minerals, anthropology and modern vertebrates, as well as numerous
exhibits which illustrate the evolution and ecology of major groups of animals.

The College's collections are exhibited on campus where they are maintained.

The College and the Library maintain policies and procedures addressing the collections' upkeep
as well as other aspects of their management, including accession and deaccession policies.

12. CONTINGENCY

The College is presently the defendant in a lawsuit with a vendor who is asserting the College is
responsible for costs relating to delays in completing a project. The vendor has asserted a claim
of approximately $5,000,000. The College believes it has meritorious defenses to the vendor's
claim. This matter is scheduled to go to mediation before the end of fiscal year 2013.

13. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated subsequent events for the period after June 30, 2012, through
October 22, 2012 the date the financial statements were available to be issued. In October, 2012,
the College issued $100,000,000 in the form of taxable bonds, Series 2012A. The proceeds from
this issue are being used to fund certain capital projects, including the development, design,
construction, furnishing and equipping of a new science center on the College’s main campus, to
pay the costs of issuance of the bonds, and for other eligible purposes.

Management is not aware of any other subsequent events that would have a material impact on
the June 30, 2012 financial statements.
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October 19, 2012

Audit Committee Members
Amberst College
Ambherst, MA

Members of the Audit Committee:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of The Trustees of Amherst College
(the “Institution”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered its internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Institution's internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses as defined in the
recent amendment to AU 325, Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an
Audit, of the AICPA Professional Standards and shown below:

Control deficiency — exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis.

Significant deficiency - a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely
affects the entity's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote
likelihood that a misstatement of the entity's financial statements that is more than
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected.

Material weakness — a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be
prevented or detected.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Audit Committee and management, and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Pri CQQGJCJL\o%Coe-PVS LLP

PricewaterhouscCoopers LLP

PricewaterhouseCoapers LLP, 185 Asylum Street, Suite 2400, Hartford, CT 06103
T: (860) 241 7000, F: (860) 241 7590, www.pwe.com/us
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Update of Prior Year Comments

1.

Net assets and endowment

Observation / Impact

In the mid 1990s, the Institution implemented Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.
117, Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations (FAS 117) which required that the
Institution determine, based on donor restrictions, its net asset categories (permanently restricted,
temporarily restricted, and unrestricted) for financial reporting purposes. Net assets and
endowment funds at the Institution are subject to scrutiny by donors, bond rating agencies, and
bond purchasers, and are also used to compare the Institution to its peers.

In connection with our audit, we identified the following area for focus by management:

The Institution determined its net asset classifications by “rolling forward” information from the
prior year to the current year. While this is a practice at many other colleges and universities, it is
a best practice to reconcile the financial statement classes of net assets with the detail of the
components (e.g. funds) that make up the balance of permanently restricted and temporarily
restricted net assets.

Recommendation

We recommend that the Institution reconcile and support their net asset classifications with a detail
analysis of the funds that comprise permanently restricted and temporarily restricted net assets.

Current Status
This comment is closed.

When the Institution adopted Financial Accounting Standards No. 117, noted above, the initial
establishment of the net asset categories of endowment funds were established by management
after a detailed review of underlying records and reviewed by the Institution’s independent
auditors. Each year additions to restricted funds, gains / losses, income, and transfers to and from
permanently and temporarily restricted net assets are reviewed by the Institution for proper
accounting.

Management has reconciled their net asset classifications for permanently restricted and
temporarily restricted net assets and has a detail analysis of the funds that comprise these balances.

Pw( 1



Ambherst College  Internal Control Observations

Implement Colleague Advancement Software Conversion

Observation / Impact

As of June 30, 2010, the Benefactor module of the Datatel application, as well as interfaces to the
existing Colleague module of Datatel and data conversion utilities, was no-longer supported by the
vendor. Management was scheduled to convert from the Benefactor system to the Colleague
Advancement module of Datatel in January 2012.

Converting to a supported software package helps to reduce the risk associated with unresolved
system errors, data corruption or functionality issues that could impact management's ability to
maintain complete and accurate records of advancement transactions/data and financial data.

Recommendation

Management should continue in their efforts to implement / convert to a supported version of the
Colleague Advancement module. In addition, management should ensure that the conversion
process is properly controlled, tested, approved and documented (i.e., utilizing project plans,
ensuring data conversion and application functionality is appropriately tested and approved prior to
go-live).

Current Status
This comment is closed.

The Colleague Advancement implementation and Benefactor data conversion was completed as of
June 30, 2012.

Enhance Firewall Protection

Observation / Impact

Although a firewall protects the Datatel system and the administrative computers with access to
Datatel, a large portion of the College's file servers and a number of administrative computers
without Datatel access do not have firewall protection. Management is aware of the risk and is
reviewing the possibility of configuring its network to expand the network segments behind a
firewall. The lack of security protection surrounding a large portion of the College’s file servers and
administrative computers increases the risk that external entities may gain access to the network
and subsequently obtain or alter sensitive data.

Recommendation

Management should continue to review the possibility of configuring the network to expand the
coverage behind the firewall, in order to protect the College’s file servers and remaining
administrative computers.

Current Status
This comment is closed.

Management has placed all financially related file servers behind the firewall.
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Standard 3: Organization and Governance
(Locations and Modalities)

Campuses, Branches, Locations, and Modalities Currently in Operation (See definitions, below)

(Tnsert additional rows as appropriate.)

2 City State or Country  Date Initiated  Enrollment*
| Main campus Ambherst MA 12/25/1904 1791
7| Other principal campuses
|| Branch campuses
| Other instructional locations
Distance Learning, e-learning Enrollment*
Date Initiated
lirst on-linc course
First program 50% or more on-line
First program 100% on-line
distance Learning, other Date Initiated Enrollment*®
Modality [ | | |
Sorrespondence Education Date Initiated Enrollment*

I | | Se——

Dlxuw-llusid(:ncy Programs Date Initiated Enrollment*
Program Name | | | | [ |

Definitions

Main campus: primary campus, including the principal office of the chief executive officer,

Other principal campus: a campus away from the main campus that cither houses a portion or portions of the
institution's academic program (e.g., the medical school) or a permanent location offering 100% of the degree
requirements of one or more of the academic programs offered on the main campus and otherwise meets the
definition of the branch campus (below).

Branch campus (federal definition): a location of an institution that is geographically apart and independent of
the main campus which meets all of the following criteria: a) offers 50% or more of an academic program leading
to a degree, certificare, or other recognized eredential, or atr which a degree may be completed; b) 1s permanent in
nature; ¢ has its own faculty and administrative or supervisory organization; d) has its own budgetary and hiring
authority.

Instructional location: a locaton away from the main campus where 50% or more of a degree or Litle-1V eligible
certificate ean be completed.

Distance Learning, e-learning: A degree or Title-TV eligible certificate for which 50% or more of the courses
can be completed entirely on-line.

Distance Learning, other: A degree or Title IV certificate in which 50% or more of the courses can be
completed entirely through a distance learning modality other than c-learning.

Correspondence Education (federal definition): lducation provided through one or more courses by an
institution under which the mstitution provides instructional materials, by mail or clectronic transmission, including
examinations on the materials, to students who are separated from the instructor. Interaction between the
instructor and the student is limited, is not regular and substantive, and is primarily initiated by the student.
Correspondence courses are typically self-paced. Correspondence education is not distance education.

“ Report here the annual unduplicated headeount for the most recently completed vear.
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Standard 4: The Academic Program
(Summary - Enrollment and Degrees)

Fall Enrollment* by location and modality, as of Census Date

Notes:

Clinical Professional
Degree Level/ _— 4 .. | doctorates (e.g., | doctorates (e.g., | M.D.,].D., Total Degree-
Lucatiﬁn & Modality Associate's | Bachelor's | Master's Pharm.D.. ]()P%l', Ed.D., Psy.D{i DDS Ph.D. Sedliing ETE
DNP) D.B.A))
Main Campus FTE 1} 1,791 ] 0 0 0 0 1,791
Other Campus FTE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Branches FTE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Locations FTE 0 1] 1] 1] 1] i] 1]
Overseas Locations
FTE 0 0 1] 0 0 0 0
On-Line FTE
0 )] 0 () 0] 0 4]
Correspondence FTE 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Low-Residency
Programs FTE 0 0l 1] ¢] 0 1] 5}
Total FTE 0 1,791 i] 4] 0 0 0 1,71
Unduplicated
Headcount Total 1] 1,791 i] 0 1] 0 0 1,791
Degrees Awarded,
Most Recent Year 1} 483 0 0 0 0 o} 483
Non- i : s ;
Student Type/ Matriotated Visiting | Title IV-Eligible Certificates:
Location & Modality # Students | Students Seeking Certificates
Students
Main Campus FTE 17 1,791
Other Campus FTE
Branches FTE
Other Locations FTE
Overseas Locations
FTE
On-Line FTE
Correspondence FTE
Low-Residency
Programs FTE
Total FTE 17 1,791
Unduplicated
Headcount Total
Certificates Awarded,
Most Recent Year n.a. n.a.

1} Enrollment numbers should include all students in the named carcgories, including students in continuing cducation and students enrolled through any

contracrual relanonship.

2} Fach student should be recorded in only one category, e.g., students enrolled i low-residency programs housed on the main campus should be recorded
only in the category "low-residency programs.”

3} Please refer w form 3.2, "Locations and Modalities," for definitions of locations and instructional modalitics

* For programs not taught i the fall, report an analogous term's enrollment as of its Census Date,

July, 2011
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Standard 4: The Academic Program
Headcount by UNDERGRADUATE Program Type

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Cutrent Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year* Forward (goal)
For Fall Term, as of Census Date (FY 2009) || (FY 2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
Certificate Z 3 : a z
Associate | | [ L L] |
Baccalaureate | 1,697 ” 1,744 I | 1,795 | l 1,791 | | 1,794 |
Total Undergraduate | 1,697 | | 1,744 [ l 1.795 | l 1,791 | | 1,794 |
4.2
Standard 4: The Academic Program
Headcount by GRADUATE Program Type
3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year* Forward (goal)
For Fall Term, as of Census Date EY2Z ) {FY2 ) (FY2 ) (FY2 ) FXZ 3
Master's | [ I [ [ |
Doctorate | [ [ | [ |
First Professional | l | | I | I | | |
Other l [ [ [ [ |
Total Graduate | I | l | | [ ] I |
43

Standard 4: The Academic Program
(Credit Hours Generated at Undergraduate and Graduate Levels)

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Priot Priot Year* Forwatd (goal)
(FY2 ) (FY2 ) (FY2 ) (FY2 ) (Y2 )
Undergraduate 1 __,_Q_QZ 1,744 1,795 1,791 1,794
Graduate | I || L] | |

*"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

4.4
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Standard 5: Faculty
(Rank, Fall Term)

3 Years 2 Years 1 Year Current Year* Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Forward (goal)
(FY 2009) (FY 2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
ET PT FT P FT PT FT PT FT PT
Number of Faculty
Professor 95 13 88 16 88 17 82 22 82 12
Associate 30 0 32 - 35 34 34
Assistant 31 0 35 37 43 53
Instructor 19 + 20 21 - 23 2 23 2
Other 25 2 26 2 25 3 31 3 31 3
Total 200 19 20 22 206 24 213 27 223 17

(Appointments, Tenure, Departures, and Retirements, Full Academic Year)

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year Forward (goal)
(FY 2009) (FY 2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
EFT PT EL PT ET PT ET Bl EL T
s 3 7 0 21 16 33 25
Appointed
# of Faculty in |
Tenured 128 1 122 14 120 15 117 22 125 18
Positions
of Baenlty 19 18 5 11
Departing
# of Faculty 0 . 8 4
Retiring

*#"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

July, 2011
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Standard 6: Students
(Admissions, Fall Term)

Credit Seeking Students Only -

Including Continuing Education

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year* Forward (goal)
(FY 2009 ) (FY 2010) (FY 2011) || (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
Freshmen - Undergraduate '
Completed Applications 7,745 7,679 8,099 8,565 8,500
Applications Accepted 1,144 1.227 1,240 1,110 1,100
Applicants Enrolled 438 467 490 463 465
% Accepted of Applied 14.8% 16.0% 15.3% 13.0% 12.9%
% Enrolled of Accepted 38.3% 38.1% 39.5% 41.7% 42.3%
Percent Change Year over Year
Completed Applications - -0.9% 5.5% 5.8% -0.8%
Applications Accepted - 1.3% 1.1% -10.5% -0.9%
Applicants Enrolled 6.6% 4.9% -5.5% 0.4%
Average of Statistical Indicator of
|:\ptitude of Enrollees: (Define Below) H I | | | I | I |
Transfers - Undergraduate ﬂ
Completed Applications 483 515 595 514 525
Applications Accepted 27 29 30 23 25
Applications Enrolled 23 23 20 13 15
% Accepted of Applied 5.6% 5.6% 5.0% 4.5% 4.8%
% Enrolled of Accepted 85.2% 79.3% 66.7% 56.5% 60.0%

Master's Degree

Completed Applications

Applications Accepted

Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

First Professional Degree - All Programs B

Completed Applications

Applicatons Accepted

Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

Doctoral Degree

Completed Applications

Applications Accepted

Applications Enrolled

% Accepted of Applied
% Enrolled of Accepted

*"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commuission.
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Standard 6: Students

(Enrollment, Fall Census Date)

Credit-Seeking Students Only - Including Continuing Education

UNDERGRADUATE

First Year

Second Year

Third Year

Fourth Year

Full-Time Headcount

Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Full-Time Headcount

Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Unclassified  Full-Time Headcount

Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

Total Undergraduate Students

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

% Change FTE Undergraduate

GRADUATE

Full-Time Headcount
Part-Time Headcount
Total Headcount
Total FTE

% Change FTE Graduate

GRAND TOTAL
Grand Total Headcount
Grand Total FTE
% Change Grand Total FTE

#"Current Year" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.

July, 2011

6.2

3 Years 2 Years 1Year Current Next Year
Prior Prior Prior Year* Forward (goal)
FyY 2009 )| (FY 2010 H[] (Fy2o11 ) || (FY2012 )|[ (FY2013 )
441 467 493 470 465
441 467 493 470 465
441.0 || 467.0 | | 493.0 | | 470.0 ] | 465.0 |
488 447 470 497 462
488 447 470 497 462
488.0 || 447.0 | | 470.0 | | 497.0 | | 462.0 |
350 392 351 371 401
350 392 351 371 401
3500 || 392.0 | | 351.0 | | 3710 | | 401.0 |
421 426 480 453 470
421 426 480 453 470
421.0 | 426.0 || 480.0 | | 453.0 || 4700 |
| 32 40 31 33 35
32 40 31 33 35
16.0 || 200 | | 15.5 | | 16.5 | | 17.5 |
1,700 1,732 1,794 1,791 1,798
32 40 31 33 35
1,732 1,772 1,825 1,824 1,833
1,716.0 1,752.0 1,809.5 1,807.5 1,815.5
na 2.1% 3.3% -0.1% 0.4%
- | : )
=|| -
-l 11 = 2 -
na
1,732 1,772 1,825 1,824 1,833
1,716.0 1,752.0 1,809.5 1,807.5 1,8155
na 2.1% 3.3% -0.1% 0.4%



Standard 6: Students
(Financial Aid, Debt, and Developmental Coutrses)

H\Xr’here does the institution describe the students it seeks to serve?

lhttps;mev,amherst.edu!aboutamherstﬁmission

3 Years 2 Years Most Current |Next Year
Prior Prior Recently | Budget* | Forward
Completed (goal)
Year
(FY 2009 ) (FY 2010 )[(FY 2011 )[(FY 2012 ){FY 2013 )
ﬂ Student Financial Aid
Total Federal Aid $3,740,338| $4,640,302| $4,907,341| §4.,411,342| 4009327.7
Grants $1,617,942| $2,217,880| $2,408,951| $1,970,200] 1611360.3
Loans $1,352,126 $1,586,133| $1,582,324| $1,460,020] 1347169.4
Work Study $770,270 $836,289 $916,066 $981,122| 1050798.1
Total State Aid $162,033 $155,094 $140,552| 127373.49
Total Institutional Aid $30,687.481| $34,994,785| $39,054,871| §41,410,089] 43931516
Grants $30,276,811] $34,490,128| $38,523,014| $40,912,950] 43451156
Loans $113,007 $141,067 $131,380 $83,428| 52977.86
Total Private Aid $1,521,882 $1,367,670] $1,221,688| §1,002,764| 829921.39
Grants $960,020 $725,746 $782,179 $685,920] 601507.13
Loans $561,862 $641,924 $439,509 $316,844| 228414.25
Student Debt
Percent of students graduating with debt**
Undergraduates 46% 41% 42% 42% 0.42
Graduates N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
For students with debt:
Average amount of debt for students leaving the institution with a degree
Undergraduates 12603.00 11347.00 12843.00 12713.00] 12584.316
Graduates N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Average amount of debt for students leaving the institution without a degree
Undergraduates Unknown [Unknown |Unknown |Unknown |Unknown
Graduate Students N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Cohort Default Rate

0.02]Unknown  [Unknown [Unknown |Unknown |

Petcent of First-year students in Develo mental Courses¥®¥¥

English as a Second/Other Language
English (reading, writing,
communication skills)

Math

Other

0% 0% 0% 0% 0
0% %% 0% 0% 0
0% 0% 0% 0% 0
0% 0% 0% 0% 0

“"Current Budeet" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.
g ¥ P

#+ All students who graduated should be included in this calculation.

+##+ Courses for which no credit toward a degree i1s granted.

July, 2011
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Standard 9: Financial Resources

(Statement of Financial Position/Statement of Net Assets)

2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior Most Recent Percent Change

FISCAL YEAR ENDS month &day: (/) (FY 2009) (FY 2010) Year (2011) | 2yrs-1yrprior  1yr-most recent
ASSETS
CASH AND SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 79,286,543 8,992,858 $1,778,637 -88.7% -80.2%
CASH HELD BY STATE TREASURER -

DLEPOSITS HELD BY STATE TREASURER
ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 5,921,297 4,550,087 $4,858,215 -23.2% 6.8%
CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE, NET 52,184,342 124,693,415 | $100,849,053 138.9% -19.1%
INVENTORY AND PREPAID EXPLENSES 1,288,739 1,328,476 $2,824 450 3.1% 112.6%
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 1,515,067,603 |  1,687,506,301 | $1,992,886,104 11.4% 18.1%
LOANS TO STUDENTS 4,014,071 3,827,077 $3,502,574 -4.7% -8.5%
FUNDS HELD UNDER BOND AGREEMENT
PROPERTY, PLANT AN EQUIPMENT, NE'T 334,008,538 335,126,214 $341,752,250 0.3% 2.0%
OTHER ASSETS 21,317,166 17,290,011 $20,421,492 -18.9% 18.1%
TOTAL ASSETS $2,013,088,299 |$2,183,314,439 | #HHHHEHH 8.5% 13.1%
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 9,079,870 7,678,187 $17,234,253 -15.4% 124.5%
DEFERRED REVENUE & REFUNDABLE ADVANCES 2,698,355 3,333,509 $2,900,747 23.5% -13.0%
DULTOSTATL
DUE TO AFFILIATES
ANNUTTY AND LIFE INCOME OBLIGATIONS 33,234,419 32,427,070 537,563,815 -2.4% 15.8%
AMOUNTS HELD ON BEHALI OF OTHERS 901,346 1,223,096 §1,547,227 35.7% 26.5%
LONG TERM DERT 317,805,400 315,417,800 $312,795,200 -0.8% -0.8%
REFUNDABLE GOVERNMENT ADVANCES 2,070,632 2,036,612 $2,028,057 -1.6% -0.4%
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITTES 46,436,252 56,445,369 $57,590,859 21.6% 2.0%
TOTAL LIABILITIES $412,226,274 | $418,561,643 | $431,660,158 1.5% 3.1%
NET ASSETS
UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

| INSTITUTIONAL 604,511,868 626,470,210 | $733,555,760 3.6% 17.1%

_ﬂ FOUNDATION -

TOTAL $604,511,868 | $626,470,210 | $733,555,760 3.6% 17.1%
TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NITT ASSIETS

| INSTTIUTTONAL 713,740,482 742,343,676 | $888,601,992 4.0% 19.7%
J FOUNDATION s

TOTAL $713,740,482 | $742,343,676 | $888,601,992 4.0% 19.7%
PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NIET ASSELS

INSTITUTIONAL 282,609,675 395,938,910 | $415,054,865 40.1% 4.8%

FOUNDATION .

TOTAL $282,609,675 | $395,938,910 | $415,054,865 40.1% 4.8%
TOTAL NET ASSETS $1,600,862,025 |##HEHBHEH | #EHHEHHHH 10.2% 15.4%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $2,013,088,299| $2,183,314,439| #HHHHHHH 8.5% 13.1%
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Standard 9: Financial Resources
(Statement of Revenues and Expenses)

Mast Recently Next Year
3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior Completed Year | Current Budget* Forward
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month &day: (/) (FY2009) (FY2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) EY2 )
OPERATING REVENUES
o TUITION & FEES $62,412,848 $65,990,847 $72,348,755 £74,099.000 $78,156,000
| ROOM AND BOARD $15,945 889 $17,023.776 $18,769,607 518,881,000 $19,931,000
1.ESS: FINANCIAL AID ($30,318,076) ($34,453,750) ($38,644,631) ($40,125,0000] (842 505,000)
NETSTUDENT FELES $48,040,661 848,561),873 $52,473,731 52,855, (00 $55,582, 1110
GOVERNMENT GRANTS & CONTRACTS S1,588,862 $1,228,692 $2,239,768 $1,621,000 $1,621,000
PRIVATE GIFTS, GRANTS & CONTRACTS §14,022,742 513,031 442 $14,459. 760 $14,025,000 $14,042,000
| OTHER AUNILIARY ENTERPRISES £3533,211 $3,258,953 $3,565,340) §3,555,000 $3,675,000
ENDOWMENT INCOME USED IN OPERATIONS $58,098,437 $59,320,057 859,224,716 366,063,000 $64,501,000
i CFIHLER REVENLL {spucify): $2,361,832 $2,208,625 $2,141,731 $2,739,000 $3,839,000
CYITIER REVENUL "spucuf\-):
NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM RESTRICTIONS ($870,192) (8367,225) $287,356 $300,000 $300,000
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES $126,775,553 $128,141,417 | $134,392,402 $141,158,000 | $148,560,000
OPERATING EXPENSES
INSTRUCTION $34,526,075 $33,760,920 833,451,348 537,335,000 $38,814,000
RESEARCL $2,686,394 2,799,708 $4,055,378 §3,462,000 $3,462,000
PUBLLIC SERV ICE
ACADEMIC SUPPORT $16,237,151 $16,049,582 $17,227,500 $16,731,000 $17,233,000
STUDENT SERVICLS $14,967,397 $14,070,301 $14,908,698 §15,152,000 $15,922,000
INSTUTUTION AL SUPPORT $16,225,981 $17,991,788 $19,431,235 $14,039,000 14,739,000
FUNDRALSING AND ALUMNI RELATIONS 6,196,000 $6,373,000
CPERATION, MAINTENANCE OF PLANT (1f not allocared) §19.217,010 $17,846,334 $14,254,013 $14,343,000 $20,104,000
SCHOLARSHIPS & FELLOWSHIPS (Cash refunded by public
institutions} $1,149,534 5935026 $1,209,866 $900,000 $925,000
AUNILIARY ENTERPRISES $12,680,468 §11,615,342 $12,546,500 $12,963,000 $13,350,000
DEPRECIATION Gf notallocated)
CFTHER EXPENSES (specify): §9,082,987 $13,067,482 $13,297,866 $16,037,000 $17,638,000
OTHER EXPENSES (specifyl:
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES $126,772,997 $128,136,489 | $134,382,404 $141,158,000 | $148,560,000
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS FROM OPERATIONS $2,556 $4,928 $9,998 $0 $0
_| NON OPERATING REVENUES
ATE APPROPRINTIONS (NET)
HINVESTMENT RETURN ($434,115,963) $56,876,772 $251,915,892
st ExpENsE {public instinstons)
GIFES, BEQUESTS & CONTRIBUTIONS NOT USED IN
OPERATIONS $13,022,183 $110,864,481 $21,472,806
loomiiR (pecif: (58,154,863) $2,443,499 | 5,623,726
OTHLR (spreifyy ($7,147,234) ($5,871,839) ($2,185,640)
OTHER (speciy): ($9,359,642) ($427,070) ($4,376,961)
NET NON OPERATING REVENUES ($445,755,519) $163,885,843 | $272,449,823 30 $0
INCOME BEFORE OTHER REVENUES EXPENSES,
GAINS, OR LOSSES ($445,752,963) $163,890,771]  $272,459,821 $0 $0
CAPITAL APPROPRIATIONS (public instirunions)
{THER
TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET ASSETS ($445,752,963) $163,890,771]  $272,459,821 50 30

*'Current Budget” refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission,
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(Statement of Debt)

Standard 9: Financial Resources

Most Recently Next Year
2 Years Prior 1Years Prior | Completed Year | Current Budget* Forward
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day ( / ) (FY2009) (FY2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
DEBT
BEGINNING BALANCI $175,079,650 $317,805,400 $315,417,800 $312,795,200 $310,107,600
ADDITIONS $155,485,400 $87,400 $87,400 $87,400 575,087,400
REDUCTIONS ($12,759,650) ($2,475,000 ($2,710,000) ($2,775,000) ($4,405,000}
ENDING BALANCE $317,805,400 $315,417,800 $312,795,200 $310,107,600 [ $380,790,000
INTEREST PAID DURING FISCAL
YEAR $3,832,825 $8,701,785 $7,960,183 $8,355,500 $11,355,000
CURRENT PORTION ($2,475,000) ($2,710,000) (52,775,000) (84,405,000  ($4,530,000)

BOND RATING

DEBT COVENANTS (PLEASE
DESCRIBE):

No financial convenants.

Note: "Additions" in FY '10 and '11 1s amortization of bond discount.

*"Current Budget" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.
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Standard 9: Financial Resources

(Supplemental Data)
Most Recently Next Year
2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior Completed Year | Current Budget* Forward
FISCAL YEAR ENDS month & day ( / ) (FY2009) (FY2010) (FY 2011) (FY 2012) (FY 2013)
NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS BEGINNING OF YEAR $2,046,614,988 $1,600,862,025 $1,764,752,796 $2,037,212,617 $2,037,212,617
TOTAL INCREASE/DECREASE IN NET
ASSETS ($445,752,963) $163,890,771 $272,459,821
NET ASSE'TS END OF YEAR $1,600,862,025 $1,764,752,796 $2,037,212,617 $2,037,212,617 $2,037,212,617
FINANCIAL AID
SOURCE OF FUNDS
UNRESTRICTED INSTITUTIONAL $19,599,278 $23,027,401 $27,029,066 $28,044,812 $29,796,643
FEDERAL, STATE & PRIVATE GRANTS $1,598,044 $2,196,868 $2,328,539 $2,328,539 $2,328,539
RESTRICTED FUNDS $10,718,798 $11,426,349 $11,615,565 $12,080,188 $12,708,357
TOTAL $31,916,120 $36,650,618 $40,973,170 $42,453,539 $44,833,539
% DISCOUNT QF TUI'TION & FEES 48.6% 52.2% 53.4"% 54.2% 54.4%
So UNRESTRICTED DISCOUNT 25.0% 27.7% 29.7% 30.2% 30.4%

PLEASE INDICATE YOUR INSTITUTION'S ENDOWMENT SPENDING POLICY:

owth in the endowment from prior year capital gifts. This amount is compared to the Institution's needs and increased, if possible, to

#"Cutrent Budget" refers to the year in which the interim report is submitted to the Commission.
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Standard 10: Public Disclosure

Information

Web Addresses

Print Publications

1 [ow can inquiries be made about the msttution?
Where can questions be addressed?

hitps:/ /www.amherst.edu/ people/ contact

View Book, Report to Secondary Schools

Notice of availability of publications and of audited
financial statement or fair summary

https:/ /www.amherst.edu/offices/ treasurer/ annual_repo
rts

Insurutional catalog

https:/ /www.amherst.edo/academiclife /registrar/ AC_Co

urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog

Ambherst College Catalog

Obligations and responsibilities of students and the
mspunion

hitp:/ fwww.amherstedu/ ~dos/ conduct/ rightsrespon.ht
ml

Amnerst College Cam]o&; Student Handbook

Information on admission and attendance

https:/ /www.amherst.edu/admission,/

Ambherst College Catalog: Section 111

Institutional nussion and objectives

https:/ / www.amherst.edu/aboutamherst/ mission

Ambherst College Catalog: Section |

Lixpected educational outcomes

https:/ /cms.amherstedu/academichife/dean_faculty/tap/
advising

Amherst College Catalog

Status as public or independent institution; status as not
for-profit or for-profit; religious affilaton

hteps:/ fwww.amherst.edu/media/ view /429327 foriginal /
Catalog"u205ecnon20L.pdf

Ambherst College Catalog, pa2

Requirements, procedures and policies re: admissions

hteps:/ /www.amherst.edu/admission/apply

Amherst College Caralog: Section 111

Requirements, procedures and policies re: transfer
credit

hetps:/ fvww.amherst.edu/admission fapply/ transfer;
heeps:/ /www.amherst.edu/media/ view/429331 /original /
Caralogh208ection %201V pdf

Amherst College Caralog, TV

A list of instrutions with which the institution has an
articulation agreement

N/A

N/A

Student fees, charges and refund policies

https:/ / www.amherst.cdu/academiclife/ registrar/ AC_Co
urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog,
https:/ /www.amherst.edu/admission/ financial _aid

Amherst College Caralog: Section 111

Rules and regulations for student conduct

https:/ /www.amherst.edu/campuslife/deanstudents/cod
¢

Amnerst College Catalog; Student Handbook

Procedures for student appeals and complaints

https:/ /www.amherst.edu/campuslife/ deanstudents/ han
dbook/studentrights

Student Handbook

Other mformation re: attending or withdrawing from
the mstitution

https:/ fwww.amherstedu/campushife/ deanstudents /leay
<

Student Handbook

Academic programs

hupsy/ /www.amherst.edu/ academiclife/ depariments

Ambherst College Catalog

Courses currenty offered

hups:// www.amherst.edu/course_scheduler

Ambherst College Catalog

Other available educanonal opportunities

hetp:/ Sownw. fivecolleges edu/ sites/ courses/;
hetp:/ Swww.amherstedu/ ~carcers/ abroad /abroad. html

Amherst College Catalog

Other academic policies and procedures

Requirements for degrees and other forms of academic
recognition

https:/ /www.amherst.edu/academiclife/ registrar/ AC_Co
urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog

Amherst College Catalog; Section 1V, VI

List of current faculty, indicating department or
program affiliation, distinguishing between full- and
part-time, showing degrees held and nstirutions
granting them

hteps:/ /www.amherst.edu/ academiclife/ registear/ AC_Co
urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog

Ambherst College Catalog: Section |

Names and positions of administrative officers

htps:/ /www.amherst.edu/academiclife/ registrar/ AC_Co
urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog

Amherst College Catalog: Section |

Names, principal affiliations of governing booard
members

hetps:/ /wwrw.amherst.edu/ academiclife/ registear/ AC_Co
urse_Info_tools/ac_catalog

Ambherst College Catalog: Section 1

lLocations and programs available at branch campuses,
other mstructional locations, and overseas operations at
which students can enroll for a degree, along with a
deseription of programs and services available ar each
location

N/A

N/ A

Programs, courses, services, and personnel not available
in any given academic year,

Not available online

Ambherst College Catalog

Swze and charactenisties of the student body

hps:/ S www.amberstedu/ aboutamherst/ glance /commeo
n_data_sets

Ambherst College Catalog, p 42

Description of the campus sctting

! [www.amherst.edu/aboutamherst/

Availability of academic and other support seevices

hetps:/ / www.amherst.edu/academiclife/ support

Student Handbook

Range of co-curricular and non-academic opportunitics
available to students

hteps:/ /www.amherst.edu/campuslife/

Ambherst College Catalog, pe. 42-48

Instirutional learning and physical resources from
which a student can reasonably be expected to benefit

hetp:/ fwww.amherst.edu/ ~dos /acadsupport.huml;
hitp:/ /www.amherst.edu/library/

Amberst College Catalog

Institutional goals for students’ education

hetps:/ /ems.amherstedu/academiclife/ dean_faculty /tap/
advising

Amherst College Catalog

July, 2011
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Success of students in achieving imstrutional goals
including rates of retention and graduation and other
measure of student success appropriate to institutional
misston. Passage rates for hieensure exams, as
appropriate

htp:/ S www.amherst.edu/ ~or/;

hetps:/ /ems.amherst.edu/aboutamherst/ glance/ common
_data_sers;

hteps:/ /ems.amherst.edu/aboutamherst/ glance/ secondar
y_school_reports; ; htep://www.amherst.edu/ ~instdata/

Annual Report to Secondary Schools

‘Total cost of education, including availability of
financial aid and typical length of study

hetp:/ Swww.amherstedu/ admission /important_info/ fina
neialaid_tuition.html;
http:/ S www.amherst.edu/ ~ inmd/ firstyear/ coses. hml

Amherst College Catalog

lixpected amount of student debt upon graduation

http:/ {www.amherst.edu/ admission/afford_amherst/ind
ex.html

Amherst College Caralog, pg 53-58

Statement about accreditation

hteps:/ /www.amherstedu/media/view/ 434274/ ongnal /

MNotes_2012-13_Disclosures.pdf

Amberst College Catalog

July, 2011
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E Policies

Academy honesty
Intellectual property rights
Conflict of interest
Privacy rights

Fairness for students
Fairness for faculty
Fairness for staff
Academic freedom

Other

Standard 11: Integrity

Other

Non-discrimination policies

Recruitment and admissions
Employment

Evaluation

Disciplinary action
Advancement

Other

Resolution of grievances
Students

Faculty

Staff

Other

Other

&=t ]—

July, 2011

Last e e Responsible Office or
s URL Where Policy is Posted P e
4/1/87 https://www.amherst.edu/acade | |Dean of Faculty
Nov-05 https://www.amherst.edu/acade | |Dean of Faculty
Nov-05 https://www.amherst. edu/offices/| |Human Resources
1/30/07 |https://www.amherst.edu/about/ | |Trustee's Office
Jul-12 https://www.amherst.edu/campu | |Dean of Students
Nov-05 https://www.amherst.edu/acade | |Human Resources
Nov-05 https://www.amherst.edu/offices/| |Human Resources
4/1/87 https://www.amherst.edu/acade | |Dean of Faculty
Oct-12 https://www.amherst.edu/admiss| |Admissions
Sept-12 https://iwww.amherst edu/offices/| |Human Resources
Sept-12 https://www.amherst.edu/offices/| [IHuman Resources
Sept-12 https://www.amherst.edu/offices/| [Human Resources
Sept-12 @Es:ﬁwww_amherst.edu!ofﬁcesi Human Resources
ul-12 https://lwww.amherst.edu/campu | |Dean of Students
10/1/1986 | [https://www.amherst.edu/acade | [Dean of Faculty
Nowv-05 https://www.amherst.edu/offices/| |Human Resources
Last Relevant URL or Publication Responslble‘ i
Updated Committee




PART II: DOCUMENTING STUDENT SUCCESS (THE S-SERIES)

The S-seties of forms has been devised for institutions to present data on retention and graduation rates and
other measures of student success appropriate to the institution’s mission. (Standards for Accreditation: 6.6, 6.7, 6.8,
6.9,10.10 and 10.12) Clearly, not every measure listed here is appropriate for every institution. At the same time,
some institutions may have multiple instances of a single item (e.g,, licensure pass rates). In developing these
forms, the Commission recognizes the value of trends in data, and the importance of the institution’s own goals
for success. Each form provides space for institutions to indicate definitions and the methodology used to
calculate measures of student success.

By listing several ways to measure student success and achievement, the Commission encourages institutions to
reflect on how they are using data to understand student success. The far right column within each form
provides institutions the opportunity to identify their goal for each measure of student success, and the date by
which the goal is expected to be attained. As always, the Commission expects that the institution’s mission will
provide helpful guidance in thinking about which measures of student success are most important and most
useful. In brief, the forms are:

S1. Retention and Graduation Rates. Here institutions are asked to provide information on their IPEDS-
defined retention and graduation rates, along with their goals for these indicators. Institutions can also provide
additional retention and graduation indices, depending on their mission, program mix, student population,
locations, and method of program delivery. For example, some baccalaureate institutions may also track 4- and 5-
year graduation rates; some community colleges may find 4- and 5-year rates to complete an associate’s degree to
be helpful in evaluating their success with their student population. Institutions can also track the success of part-
time students, transfer students, or students studying at off-campus locations or in programs offered on-line.

$2. Other Measures of Student Achievement and Success. The measures recorded here are likely to be
mission-related. For example, some institutions may track the success of students gaining admission into
certain graduate- or first-professional degree programs. Community colleges may track the success of their
students entering baccalaureate programs. For some institutions, the number of students who enter programs
such as Teach for America, the Peace Corps, or public service law may also represent indicators of institutional
effectiveness with respect to their mission.

S3.  Licensure Passage and Job Placement Rates. Institutions that prepare students for specific careers
will find it appropriate to record the success of their students in passing licensure examinations. Also included
in this form is the provision to record the success of students — perhaps by their academic major — in finding
employment in the field for which they were prepared.

S4.  Completion and Placement Rates for Short-Term Vocational Programs. Institutions with such
programs in which students are eligible for Title IV federal financial aid should use these forms.

Using the forms: By completing these forms early in the self-study process, institutions will have time to
collect and analyze all available information. The Appraisal section of the self-study provides a useful
opportunity for institutions to reflect both on the findings recorded in the forms and the extent to which they
have developed the systems to collect and use the most important data on student success. Similarly, the
Projection section affords institutions an opportunity to state their commitment for improvement in the area of
assessment.

July 2011



Form S1. RETENTION AND GRADUATION RATES

Stl_n:lent Success Measures/ 3 Y§ars 2 Yfears 1 Y'ear Most Recent Goal for 2013
Prior Performance and Goals Prior Prior Prior Year (2012)
IPEDS Retention Data
Associate degree students n/a n/a n'a n/a n/a
Bachelors degree students 94% 94% 97% 98% 98%
IPEDS Graduation Data
Associate degree students n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Bachelors degree students 94% 94% 96% 95% 95%
Other Undergraduate Retention Rates (1)
a
b
c
Other Undergraduate Graduation Rates (2)
a | Four year graduation rate 85% 90% 87% 89% 90%
b
c
Graduate programs *
Retention rates first-to-second year (3) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Graduation rates @ 150% time (4) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Distance Education
Course completion rates (5) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Retention rates (6) n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
Graduation rates (7) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Branch Campus and Instructional Locations
Course completion rate (8) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Retention rates (9) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Graduation rates (10) n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Definition and Methodology Explanations

1

Td

oY

10

* An institution offering graduate degrees must complete this portion.
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Form S2. OTHER MEASURES OF STUDENT ACHIEVEMENT AND SUCCESS

Measures of Student Achievement
and Success/ Institutional 3 Years Prior
Performance and Goals

2 Years Prior

1 Year Prior

Most Recent
Year (201_)

Goal for 201 _

Success of Students Pursuing Higher Degree

2

3

4

Definition and Methodology Explanations

Rates at Which Graduates Pursue Mission-Related
Paths (e.g., Peace Corps, Public Service Law)

1

2

3

4

Definition and Methodology Explanations

Rates at Which Students Are Successful in Fields
for Which They Were Not Explicitly Prepared

Definition and Methodology Explanations

Documented Success of Graduates Achieving Other
Mission-Explicit Achievement (e.g., Leadership,
Spiritual Formation)

I

2

3

Definition and Methodology Explanations

Other (Specify Below)

2

Definition and Methodology Explanations

July 2011



Form 83. LICENSURE PASSAGE AND JOB PLACEMENT RATES

3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior Wiost Revet Goal for 201
Year (201_) -

State Licensure Passage Rates *

1

2
3
4

5

National Licensure Passage Rates *

L = A B o

Job Placement Rates **

(=]

O LN

L== T S I K=o R

* For each licensure exam, give the name of the exam above along with the number of students for whom scores are available and the total
number of students eligible to take the examination (e.g. National Podiatric Examination, 12/14). In following columns, report the passage
rates for students for whom scores are available, along with the institution's goals for succeeding years.

** For cach major for which the institution tracks job placement rates, list the degree and major, and the time period following graduation
for which the institution is reporting placement success (e.g.. Mechanical Engineer, B.S., six months). In the following columns, report the
percent of graduates who have jobs in their fields within the specified time.

Institutional Notes of Explanation

a

b

July 2011




Form S4. COMPLETION AND PLACEMENT RATES FOR SHORT-TERM VOCATIONAL TRAINING PROGRAMS FOR
WHICH STUDENTS ARE ELIGIBLE FOR FEDERAL FINANCIAL AID

Most Recent Year

3 Years Prior 2 Years Prior 1 Year Prior 201 )

Goal for 201 _

Completion Rates *

(B8]

So =1 O | [ (s

9

10

Placement Rates **

t== =T £ R B T E=a T LV T - A ¥ R (S ]

* List each short-term vocational training program separately. In the following columns indicate the annual weighted average completion
rate for the most recent and two prior years. In the final two columns, list institutional goals for the next two years.

** List each short-term vocational training program separately. In the following columns indicate the annual weighted job placement rate for
the most recent and two prior years. In the final two columns, list the institutional goals for the next two years.

July 2011
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